State of Delaware Health and Social Services
RFP No. PSC HSS 10-067
EBT RFP Questions and Answers

DHSS RESPONSE TO VENDOR QUESTIONS RELATED TO ASP SOLUTIONS

This RFP was written for procurement of a custom developed or a customizable COTS solution. The State will permit an ASP solution. In
section 4.34.2 entitled Site Requirements, the first paragraph should have read:

“For non-ASP solutions, the application and database infrastructure and platforms must be located at the Biggs Data Center on the DHSS
Herman Holloway Sr. Health & Social Services Campus in New Castle, Delaware.”

In this same section for an ASP solution, bidders shall describe how their solutions will work for State staff remotely accessing the system
from within the State network instead of describing how their solution will best leverage the State infrastructure. In other sections, bidders
proposing an ASP solution will describe how their system best meets the spirit of the stated requirement(s). A response of “Not applicable”
is not an option.

The State recognizes that the most significant cost components of this procurement are the services provided after the automated system
is implemented. However, each requirement in the RFP must be addressed. Even a purely COTS EBT implementation will at a minimum for
this procurement include interface and conversion requirements which will need to be documented and tested prior to implementation.
Thus the development requirements from Chapter 4 stand for all solutions and bidders are required to respond accordingly. Bidders
proposing an ASP COTS EBT solution with minimal or no customization will not be penalized. Implementation including the interface and
conversion requirements still includes all the deliverables from Chapter 4 and the project cost schedule F1 which covers implementation
costs through the 90 day warranty period. Bidders will provide costs for each of the deliverables listed. The State requests a five year
service period commencing upon State Approval of the production system. The first 3 months of the service period will overlap with the
warranty period. The State estimates a 6 month development setup through implementation timeframe; however bidders may propose
their own implementation timeframe which is in addition to the five year service period. The State has added cost schedules to cover the
following services period of the contract as Appendix N of the RFP which bidders are required to complete.

RFP SECTION QUESTION RESPONSE

4.13.2 Does Delaware currently own the NDM license or does the incumbent EBT Yes DE owns the license for the
Contractor own the license? Connect Direct/NDM software
Does Delaware intend for the EBT Contractor to bear the cost of the NDM installed on the Biggs mainframe.
license under the new contract?

If so, what is that cost of the current license?

Appendix A— | This section states that Delaware, “...will retain ownership rights to all materials | Only components that are developed
Terms & including software, designs, drawings, specifications, notes, electronically or for Delaware during the performance
magnetically recorded material, and other work in whatever form, developed of this contract.

Page 1 of 27




State of Delaware Health and Social Services
RFP No. PSC HSS 10-067
EBT RFP Questions and Answers

ID DHSS RESPONSE TO VENDOR QUESTIONS RELATED TO ASP SOLUTIONS
Conditions during the performance of this contract. A fundamental obligation herein
imposed on the Contractor is the assignment by the Contractor to DHSS of all
ownership rights in the completed project.”
For several potential contractors, the core processing systems to be provided
for this contract are already in use for many similar programs nationwide.
In this case, what, if any, component of the system would be subject to this
requirement?
4. Appendix A— | If the winning EBT Contractor provides a solution using a system that has See response 1.
Terms & already been developed and is in use by other clients, will Delaware allow
Conditions proposals which do not provide for transfer of ownership rights to DHSS?
5. Appendix F — If the bidder is proposing to use an established EBT system that it owns and See response 1.
Project Cost operates, what costs should be included in Schedule F1 - Project Costs by
Forms Deliverables & Milestones?

Page 2 of 27




State of Delaware Health and Social Services
RFP No. PSC HSS 10-067
EBT RFP Questions and Answers

As stated in Section 1.2.1, System Overview, FIS e-Funds currently hosts and
maintains the EBT system. In keeping with that model, we would also propose
to host and maintain the EBT system at our own facilities. Given that, could
Delaware please explain how it will evaluate specific requirements that do not
apply to an ASP solution. Some examples of requirements that wouldn’t be
applicable to an ASP solution are:

- Section 4.1.4 — Project Help Desk Staff Requirement asking for a technical help
desk for support during UAT, production implementation and the warranty
period

-Section 4.2 Project Management requiring early prototypes and subsequent
demonstrations of working modules

-Section 4.34.2 Site Requirements requiring the application, database
infrastructure and platforms to be located at the Biggs Data Center. However,
although ASP solutions are referenced as acceptable in other parts of the RFP,
there is no mention of how to respond to this requirement if an ASP solution is
proposed.

Please provide clarification on how bidders are to respond to requirements
meant for a custom software solution hosted at the Biggs Data Center if they
are instead proposing a hosted ASP solution at their own facility.

See response 1.
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419 The key personnel required in this section include business analysts, senior Bidders can propose project staff that
developers, technical analysts such as data base administrators and system is needed to implement their solution.
engineers, and documentation specialist. The following roles must be filled:

Project Manager/Director
If a bidder is proposing an ASP solution typical to the EBT industry, would Technical Lead
Delaware consider allowing the key personnel proposed to be more typical of Helpdesk/Support staff
an EBT solution such as a Project Director, a Project Manager, a Technical
Project Manager, and a Retail Manager?
4.16.10 In the 6th paragraph of this requirement it states, “To support online The bidder’s proposed system should

transmission of Account Setup and Benefit Authorization transactions, the EBT
Vendor shall accommodate: (1) on-line communications, host-to-host, between
DHSS and the EBT Vendor host and (2) on-line communications between
remote sites and the EBT host via the State telecommunications network.”

As this is the only mention of host-to host included in the RFP, can Delaware
please clarify if they are requiring host-to-host communications to be provided
in addition to on-line access to the vendor’s host system and batch files?

include the ability for State staff,
benefit recipients, and EBT vendors to
be able to login to an on-line system,
preferably a web application, to
perform functions in real time
respective to their role. The proposed
system should also have the ability to
receive and send batch files to
perform some of the same and
additional functions in a batch
method. Host to host means from
DHSS mainframe to vendor’s
mainframe.
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9. | 4.25.2 The last bullet point in the 2nd set of bullets states that the retailer help desk Yes. This bullet should be in section
will need to provide support to DHSS technical staff for any technical problems | 4.1.4
related to a batch process.
Is this bullet point meant to apply to the help desk supporting state staff rather
than the retailer help desk?
10. | 4.28 Billing Reports are required to substantiate the monthly billing for EBT services. | See response 1.

Where within the schedules included in Appendix F, Project Cost Forms, would
the State want bidders to indicate the proposed monthly cost for EBT services?
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11.| 4.32 In the list of documents to be provided by the EBT Contractor, it states that Disregard this bullet in section 4.32. It
“Enterprise Technology Strategies status reporting” is required. is not required. The rest of 4.32
requirement stands.
Please explain what is expected to be included in Enterprise Technology
Strategies status reporting.
12.| 6.2.4 This section states: “Vendors attending the mandatory bidders’ meeting will A sample Microsoft project plan is
receive a sample Microsoft project plan. It provides the general format that being provided along with the answers
vendors must follow when constructing their project plan. Vendor plans must to these questions. Bidders should
reflect each deliverable and milestone in the specified format.” use the provided project plan as a
guide. Microsoft Project is required
As a sample Microsoft project plan was not included in the materials distributed | for the project plan. The State is
at the bidders’ meeting, will Delaware allow bidders to determine the format of | aware that bidder project plans will
the proposed project plan included in their response? Or, will Delaware vary depending on bidders’ project
distribute a sample Microsoft project plan with responses to bidders’ management methodologies and
guestions? proposed software solutions.

13. | Appendix | Many numbers and section names on the crosswalk template (4.5 through 4.11 | No. The crosswalk template is just a
and 4.33) are not consistent with the actual requirement numbers and names sample form for the vendor to use.
of the RFP sections. Will the state issue an updated template with the correct | For example, in the crosswalk section
references? 4.11 is listed as Specific Project Tasks.

This is just a place holder for the
bidders to expand and define in
greater detail.

14. | Appendix | With respect to the item “Specific Project Tasks,” can the state clarify whether | Yes, see response 13. The crosswalk
we are also to provide cross-references for the specific task requirements 4.13 | template is just a sample form for the
through 4.31 that the “Specific Project Tasks” requirement refers to? vendor to use.

15. | General These are our general concerns about RFP HHS 10-067. Please also see our See response 1.

specific questions in the pertinent RFP numbered sections.

In our opinion this RFP is structured as a technology contract, not a services
contract as is typical for EBT. This is problematic for potential vendors because
Delaware’s current EBT contract, as well as those for all other EBT states, is a
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services contract.

For example, in Section 4.34.2 the RFP states “The application and database
infrastructure and platforms must be located at the Biggs Data Center on the
DHSS Herman Holloway Sr. Health & Social Services Campus in New Castle,
Delaware.”

Since the inception of EBT, EBT vendors bid their own proprietary EBT system
and software, run on their own hardware at their own data centers. EBT
vendors will not be willing to sell, transfer, or license our proprietary
software/systems. Nor is it feasible to operate the EBT system at the DHSS
campus in New Castle.

Another concern is that the Project Cost Forms in Appendix F do not
accommodate the standard EBT cost structure. There is no cost form to
present standard EBT Cost Per Case Month (CPCM) pricing. The software and
hardware purchase, license, and maintenance forms are not applicable to an
EBT services contract.

Please clarify the intent of this RFP. Does the state require an EBT services
contract or a technology contract? If the former, certain requirements must
be amended or deleted.

16. | 4.1 In this section the state defines the key staff. However, with the exception of See response 7.
the Project Director/Manager, the other positions are applicable to a
technology contract, not to an EBT services contract. We request that the
state revise the key positions to those that are standard for an EBT services
contract.
Project/Account Manager
Technical Systems Lead
Retail Manager
Customer Service Manager
17. | 4.1.1 Under an EBT services contract, all work will be done at the vendor’s site. The See response 1.

vendor will not do any work at the Biggs Data Center nor will any vendor
databases or system libraries be located at Biggs. Would the state please
clarify these requirements for an EBT services contract?
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18.| 4.1.4 Under an EBT Services contract, the vendor is responsible for this support No. The State requires the EBT vendor
within their own organization. We request that the state delete this to provide support at times when
requirement. there are problems with the vendor’s
system. For example if there are any
issues with transmission of batch files,
we will need to call the vendor’s
support/help desk. If the vendor’s EBT
online system is down, we will need to
call the vendor’s support/help desk.
19.| 4.2 Under and EBT services contract, the second paragraph is not applicable. We See response 1.
request that the state delete this paragraph.
20.| 4.3 Under an EBT services contract, all processing systems and hardware will See response 1.
reside at the vendor’s data centers. The vendor’s staff do not access any
Delaware’s IT services. In view of this, please clarify which of the requirements
in this section can therefore be deleted or amended.
21.| 44 In this section, the RFP requires the vendor is to provide architecture diagrams. | This requirement stands. Bidders
Under an EBT services contract, a vendor’s System architecture diagrams are should clearly indicate any proprietary
proprietary information, and it is a competitive disadvantage to provide this material in their proposal as
information in a public document. We request that the State remove the confidential. The State will not make
requirements for the vendor to provide system architectural diagram(s). any confidential information public.
22.| 45 Under an EBT services contract, all processing will occur on the vendor’s See response 1.
mainframe at the vendor’s data center. We request that the state delete this
requirement.
23.| 4.6 Under an EBT services contract, the database will reside on the vendor’s See response 1.
system and is based on the vendor’s proprietary design. We request that the
state delete this requirement.
24.| 4.7 Under an EBT services contract, the reporting will be run on the vendor’s See response 1.
system and resources managed by the vendor. We request that the state
delete this requirement as EBT reporting is defined in Section 4.28.
25.| 4.8 Under an EBT services contract, the proposed solution will run in the vendor’s | See response 1.

environment/network, not the state’s. We request that the state delete this
requirement.
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26.

4.9

The COTS (commercial off the shelf) software is not applicable to an EBT
services contact. We request that the state delete this requirement.

See response 1.

27.

4.10

Under an EBT services contact, backup and recovery of the EBT system is the
responsibility of the EBT vendor. We request that the state delete this
requirement as backup and recovery will be defined in Section 4.13.1, Design
Phase, Back-up and Recovery Plan.

See response 1.

28.

4.11

Under an EBT services contact, disaster recovery of the EBT system is the
responsibility of the EBT vendor. We request that the state delete this
requirement as Disaster Preparation is defined in Section 4.31.

See response 1.
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29.| 4.16.10 The last paragraph includes “...the EBT Vendor shall accommodate: (1) on-line | See Response 8.
communications, host-to-host, between DHSS and the EBT Vendor host”.
Please clarify whether the State is planning to implement a host-to-host
environment in the new contract.
30.| 4.16.11 The Universal Product Code is not applicable to EBT. While it will be necessary | The State would like to do this as an
for your future plans for WIC, we suggest this requirement be deleted from option for enhancements to EBT
this RFP. Instead all the WIC requirements, included UPC, can be defined system and will need information
separately when the State is ready to implement WIC. about current capabilities of your
proposed system for future
endeavors. This was not for WIC but
for the Healthy Incentive Pilot (HIP)
Program.
31.| 4.33 The majority of this section appears to apply to a technology contract and not | See response 1.
to an EBT services contract, and duplicates or restates requirements in
Sections 4.13-32. We request the state revise the requirements to those of an
EBT services contract, delete the section completely, or allow vendors to
respond to the pertinent EBT deliverables in this section as part of our
response to the standard phases as required in Section 4.13.
32.| 4.34 Section 4.34 applies to technology contract and not an EBT services contract. See response 1.
Each vendor will be bid their proprietary EBT system and software, and run it
on their own hardware in their own data center. We request that the state
delete this section entirely, or revise it to fit the needs of an EBT services
contract.
33.| 6.2.5 RFP Section 6.2.4 states that all requirements of RFP Section 4 should be Yes the vendor will satisfy the

described in Section E of the vendor’s response. However, Section 4.13,
Project Work Plan, will be addressed in Section D, Project Management Plan, of
the vendor’s response per instructions in RFP Section 6.2.5. Please clarify if the
vendor will satisfy the mandatory response requirements by responding to
Section 4.13 in Section D rather than Section E.

response requirement by addressing
section 4.13 in Section D rather than
Section E.
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34.| 6.3.2 This section applies only to a technology contract. The EBT vendor will not be See response 1.
supplying hardware or software. We request that the state delete this section.
See response 1.
35. giztztrii:n FIS understands statements made by state staff at the Bidder’s Conference on P

April 16, 2010 are not binding until issued in writing by the state. As a vendor,
our overarching concern, based on state responses at the Bidder’s Conference,
is that RFP requirements, allowable exceptions to current RFP statements and
specific EBT pricing schedules must be defined by the state in the RFP and/or
its amendments.

For example, at the bidder’s conference, the State indicated that they
expected the vendors will bid their own proprietary system to be run at the
vendor’s own data center (which is not so stated in the RFP). The State then
indicated that consequently various sections of the RFP were not applicable to
a proprietary software bid. The State also indicated that vendors could define
their own pricing schedules.

We request that the State:

= Specifically state in Section 4 that your expectation is that vendors will run
their own proprietary software in their own data center. And, define
requirements the state considers “not applicable to proprietary software” to
eliminate the possibility of a vendor’s proposal being rejected because our
interpretation differs from the state. (Generally RFP sections 4.1-12, 4.33 and
4.34)

= Provide state-defined pricing schedules (Section 6.3.1) for a proprietary
software system (EBT) bid. We suggest the state refer to the pricing
schedules used in the current contract.

If the state does not define RFP requirements described above and others
referenced in vendors questions:

= Vendors will be unable to respond to or price certain known EBT
requirements not included in the current RFP.
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= the state may be open to procurement protests; will be unable to
comparatively and accurately evaluate bidding vendors’ pricing without
standardized pricing schedules (table); and, under the new contract, the
State may be subject to additional costs (change orders) for feature/functions
the state assumes will be provided by the EBT vendor but because said
requirements are not defined in the RFP, will not have been included in the
winning pricing. Since the RFP becomes part of the contract, only those
services defined in the winning vendor’s proposal will be contracted.
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If a bidder’s proposed system includes
36. Gener.al = Define requirements for existing EBT system requirements not currently . P p . y .
Question . . . o . . . additional functionality that is not
defined in this RFP, e.g. card processing/issuance, administrative terminal, . . .
. . . . listed in the RFP, the bidder should
etc. We suggest the state refer to the technical requirements defined in . . .
. . . fully describe all the functionality of
current contract, of which the original requirements are a part. . . .
their proposed system in their
response.
37.| 4.13 This section indicates the Project Work Plan must be updated at least bi- State agrees.
weekly throughout the project, while Section 4.2, Project Management
requires that the project plan be maintained weekly. Will the State accept bi-
weekly updates as stated in Section 4.13?
38.| 4.16.1 Currently the State sends the MCl number in the case number field on the The State will supply the MCI number
case/client maintenance record. The MCI number is not currently a separate as a key identifier of an individual.
field on the file as listed in the RFP’s minimum requirements for Account Set- When the selected vendor provides
up. Please clarify if you will continue to use the case number field or will file layouts for data to be sent to the
require modifications to support MCl as a new field? vendor, they must indicate the field in
which the MCI number needs to be
entered.
39.| 6.2.2 Please clarify in which section of the proposal response Appendix L, Bidder Appendix L should be included in
Project Experience, should be included. RFP Section 6.2.2 indicates Appendix L | Section G.
should be included in Section B, Required Forms, but RFP Section 6.2.7, Firm
Past Performance and Qualifications, also states “Use the form provided in
Appendix L.”
40.| 6.2.6 The section requires staff with “Behavioral Health Clinical Expertise”. This has Disregard the text in quotes,

no relevance to EBT. Will the State please remove this requirement?

“Behavioral Health Clinical Expertise”
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41.

6.3.3

Please clarify in which proposal/CD (Business or Technical) the audited
financial statements, D&B and banking reference should be included. The
Business Proposal section RFP states “If the bidder is a publicly held
corporation, enclose a copy of the corporation's most recent three years of
audited financial reports and financial statements, a recent Dun and Bradstreet
credit report, and the name, address, and telephone number of a responsible
representative of the bidder's principle financial or banking organization;
include this information with copy of the Technical Proposal [emphasis added]
and reference the enclosure as the response to this subsection;” If the reports
should be included in the Technical proposal, what then is the purpose of
Section 6.3.3?

The audited financial statements
should go in the bidder’s Technical
proposal.

42.

6.3.3

If the bidder is a publically held corporation and is required to submit 3 years
of financial data as well as a Dun and Bradstreet report, for what reason is the
state requiring a “... the name, address, and telephone number a responsible
representative of the bidder’s principle financial or banking organization”?
Does the State plan to contact this representative, and if yes, for what
purpose? Since the vendor will provide audited statements and a D&B report,
will the State be willing to remove the banking contact requirement?

No, the requirement stands.

43,

7.5

The section on Standard Practices does not apply to a proprietary software
services contract being bid. Will the state either revise or remove this section?

See response 1.

44,

7.5

The Confidentiality and Data Integrity Section states: “The Contractor is
required to agree to the requirements in the CONFIDENTIALITY AND INTEGRITY
OF DATA STATEMENT, attached, and made a part of this RFP.” The statement
is not included in the RFP. Will the State please provide?

This form will be provided to the
selected vendor.

45.

Appendix A
8. Ownership
Rights

Since current EBT vendors will bid their proprietary EBT systems which are
already operating in multiple states, will the State please either remove this
clause entirely or clarify that it pertains only to work developed and paid for by
the State of Delaware during the performance of the contract?

See response 3.

46.

Appendix A
Irrevocable

Since current EBT vendors will bid their proprietary EBT systems which are
already operating in multiple states, will the State please either remove this
clause entirely or remove “exclusive” and clarify that it pertains only to work

This only applies to deliverables that
are designed and developed under
this contract where the development
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License developed and paid for by the State of Delaware during the performance of of software components is paid for by
the contract? the State of Delaware. See response 3.
47.| Appendix A This clause states: “The State will not entertain any modifications to the No, the State will not revise this
language of this document. By submitting a proposal to this RFP, the bidder language.
agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions in that contract document.”
Since the Terms and Conditions incorporate the RFP and the RFP is more of a
technology than an EBT services RFP, this clause could prevent the EBT vendors
from bidding on this procurement. Will the State please revise this language?
48.| Appendix C This clause states: “The Contractor agrees to provide to the Divisional Contract | No, the State will not revise or remove
Manager, on an annual basis, if requested, information regarding its client this clause.
population served under this Contract by race, color, national origin or
disability.” The proprietary software EBT system does not track this kind of
information and therefore the EBT vendor could not provide it if requested.
Will the State please remove or revise this clause.
49.| 4.3 The RFP states: “The Vendors must also comply with DTI policies and standards All of these standards potentially
and DHSS Information Technology (IT) Standards, which will be distributed at apply for solutions hosted at the
the mandatory pre-bid meeting upon vendor signature of a non-disclosure vendor’s data center. DHSS will
agreement.” We have reviewed the standards provided at the Bidder’s discuss these standards further with
Conference. In view of the state’s agreement at the Bidder’s conference that the selected vendor.
vendors can submit a proprietary software solution run at the vendor’s own
data center, would you please clarify which, if any, of these standards are
applicable to a proprietary software solution?
50.| 4.32 The requirements in this section appear to pertain to a technology project See response 11.
rather than to an EBT services project. Since applicable EBT project deliverables
are listed in Section 4.13 of the RFP, we request that the State please delete this
section.
51.| 6.1.10 As we have noted in our questions, certain standard EBT processing See response 36.

requirements are missing from the current RFP, and therefore will not be
provided under the new contract and will not be included in a vendor’s pricing.
The missing requirements are essential to allow DHSS to administer EBT using a
proprietary software solution.

The requirements deficiency may be remedied by the state’s answers to
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questions/RFP amendments. However, if the amended RFP requirements still
do not address certain essential EBT services, and the state will not allow a
second questions period after initial questions are answered, will the state
allow vendors to submit an alternative proposal that includes all standard EBT
requirements and pricing for said services?

Such an alternative proposal would benefit the state by defining
existing/required services the state must have to conduct EBT business, and
provide accurate pricing for said services. While the current RFP allows
alternate proposals, at the bidder’s conference, the state indicted alternate
proposals would not be allowed. Please clarify.

52.

6.2.4

The RFP states: “Vendors attending the mandatory bidders’ meeting will receive
a sample Microsoft project plan. It provides the general format that vendors
must follow when constructing their project plan.” However a sample project
plan was not included on the CD distributed at the bidder’s conference, nor
were paper copies provided. In light of this, will the State permit vendors
bidding a proprietary software solution to submit their own EBT project plan
format that would include deliverables, staff, dates, milestones and resources?

See response 12.

53.

6.2.7

The last paragraph in this RFP section requires the vendor to “Provide an
example of an actual client implementation plan, similar in magnitude to the
Delaware Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT) project, including staff, dates,
milestones, deliverables, and resources.” Since the vendor will provide a
project work plan that is similar to the Delaware EBT project to meet the
requirements in RFP Section 4.13, we request the state delete this requirement
(paragraph) from the Past Performance and Qualifications section.

No, requirement stands.

54.

6.1.5

Clarification from Delaware on several RFP requirements will need to be
obtained in order to make a decision to submit a proposal. Will Delaware
consider responding to bidders’ questions as soon as they are received rather
than waiting until May 14, 2010, to allow bidders sufficient time to evaluate the
State’s responses and make the appropriate decisions or adjust their proposals
accordingly?

See Revised Schedule

55.

6.1.5

Will the state extend the response deadline for at least two weeks?

See response 54.

56.

7.2

This section of the RFP states that services will be bound by a firm fixed price

Same Vendor will have 1 contract with
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and that price will be the Total Cost shown in Schedule F1 (Appendix F).

As Schedule F1 only covers the project costs through Phase 5, Deliverable 11:
Ninety (90) Day Warranty Period, is it Delaware’s intent to enter into two
contracts: one for transition and conversion and one for ongoing EBT services
during the operational phase of the project?

2 parts

57.| 7.3 See Revised Amendment
In section 7.3, it states that the project is for five years with the State having the
right to extend the contract period for five additional one-year periods, which
would be a total of 10 years. Then, it states the total contract term is not to
exceed five years.
Can Delaware clarify if the initial contract term plus all available extensions is
for a total of five years or ten years?
58.| Appendix F See new form Appendix N
The only schedule provided for "out year support" is Schedule F4 — Out year
Software Support, ASP, and Maintenance Cost Schedule.
As the cost forms do not provide for cost per case month (CPCM)
pricing, or any other provisions for paying for services to meet the
mandatory requirements of the RFP (Sections 4.16 through 4.31),
please describe how the EBT contractor will be paid for providing
ongoing operational services? These services include:
- Support for EBT account creation and maintenance
- Transaction processing
- Settlement and reconciliation
- Reporting
- Card and PIN selection support
- Customer service for client, retail and state staff
- Ongoing retail management and support, including EBT only POS
- terminal maintenance
- Disaster services
Ongoing project management and support of the Delaware EBT System.
59.| AppendixF

With regard to Schedule F6 - State Purchased Hardware Schedule, is it

No, Delaware does not

intend to
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Delaware's intent to purchase and own the EBT-Only POS equipment?
What, if any, other equipment does Delaware envision it will need to purchase
to operate an EBT system or future branded debit card services program?

purchase POS equipment, except for
three (3) POS machines (1 in each
county for Hardship Cases).

60.| Page following No, They are the same.
Cover Page On the page following the cover page, the RFP states, “A brief ‘Letter of Interest’
must be submitted with your proposal.”
Is this Letter of Interest different from the Transmittal Letter that is required in
Section 6.2.1.? If so, what specific information is expected to be contained in
the ‘Letter of Interest’?
61.| 1.3 See response 58 & new charts posted
Can Delaware please provide case volumes for the following additional on website.
programs for which the Contractor must provide future support?
o WIC
O TANF
O General Assistance
O Healthcare applications
0 Childcare
0 Child support payments
0 Unemployment insurance benefits
0 Supplemental Security Income
0 Adoption subsidies
0 Fuel subsidies
0 Rent subsidies
0 Utilities subsidies
O Foster Care
62.1 1.3 What is Delaware’s intended timeframe to begin implementing the additional None, do as an option.

programs for which the Contractor must provide future support?
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4.16.1
o3 In the third paragraph of this requirement, it states “The card will be issued by Please disregard “as specified in the
the EBT Vendor as specified in the section on Card Issuance.” However, | section on Card Issuance.”
there is not a section for Card Issuance included in the RFP
requirements.
Could Delaware please provide the requirements for EBT card issuance?
64.| 4.30 This requirement states, “During conversion, the EBT Contractor shall allow for | See response 61.
certain processing of Food Supplement purchases...for which the
Contractor shall be liable for insufficient funds. The cost of such certain
processing shall be included in the standard cost per case month (CPCM)
charges.”
Where within the schedules included in Appendix F, Project Cost Forms, would
the State want bidders to indicate the proposed standard cost per case month
charges?
65.| 4.30 Delaware indicates in this requirement that they wish to convert their over-the- | Delaware currently uses high
counter process to a centralized mailing process for card issuance, and | coersivity cards — see response 59.
that the new process will include high coersivity cards.
Can Delaware confirm that the cards currently in use are low coercivity
cards?
Can Delaware also confirm if 100 percent of all new and replacement cards will
be issued via a centralized mailing process under the new contract?
66.| 4.34.5 Delaware is requiring that historical data from the State’s eligibility system be Delaware is interested in the new

converted or integrated into the new system.
Since eligibility system data is typically maintained only on the state’s system,
can Delaware please explain its intent in integrating eligibility data into the EBT
Contractor’s system? What specific data is required to be integrated?

Vendor testing so that DCIS Il can view
EBT Transaction Windows with
information gathered from the on-line
administration system. This system
will need to be tested so that it will
provide workers with the necessary
information that is listed in this
section 4.34.5 of this RFP
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67.

6.2.1

This section states that the original of the Transmittal Letter shall be submitted
in a separate, sealed envelope inside the package containing the
Technical Proposals. All other copies of the Transmittal Letter shall be
bound into the copies of the Technical Proposal. However, it is stated
in Section 6 that bidders are no longer required to provide hard copies.

Is Delaware requiring a hard copy of the Transmittal letter in this requirement?

Or, is it the State’s intention to have an electronic copy of the Transmittal Letter

included on the required CDs?

CD submission — No need to bind. Yes,
Delaware is still requiring a hard copy
with an electronic copy on the CD.

68.

6.2.6

Can Delaware please clarify the requirement for “Subject Matter (Behavioral
Health Clinical Expertise) Development”?

See response 40.

69.

Appendix L

Can Delaware explain what information is to be provided with regard to “Type
of Facility”?

Skip if it doesn’t apply.

70.

Appendix L

As an EBT services provider, the contracts for our existing EBT clients are not
fixed price contracts but rather contracts with based on a fluctuating
number of active cases during any given month and billed as a cost per
case month. Therefore, we do not have an original set budget or a
completed budget, per se, for any of our projects.

Can Delaware exclude “Original Budget” and “Completed Budget” from bidders’

project experience forms if their projects do no operate under fixed price

contracts?

See responses 1 and 57 and 58.

71.

General
Question

Can Delaware provide its EBT Project statistics? At a minimum, please provide
O Number of EBT-Only retailers

Number of EBT-Only terminals

Average number of monthly cardholder IVR calls

Average number of monthly cardholder CSR calls

Average number of monthly retailer IVR calls

Average number of monthly retailer CSR calls

Monthly Transaction volumes

Monthly adjustment requests

O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOo

See response 58 and new posted
charts.
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0 Average number of monthly card replacements
0 2009 caseload volumes by month

72.| 6.2.7 Provide examples of prior, completed,
Can Delaware clarify what specific information bidders are to provide in paid projects for the development and
response to the requirement to provide experience in “Development of | implementation of electronic
Accounting of payment processing systems”? accounting systems and/or electronic
Can Delaware clarify what is meant by “Development of Accounting of payment | payment processing systems and
processing systems”? software.
73.| 1 The Project Overview states “The proposed system should have an option to No timeframe has been set, please
provide clients with a branded card that clients can use for all benefit handle as an option
types.”
Currently a one-card solution that combines EBT with a branded debit card is
not operational in any state. Only one other state has expressed interest in a
one-card solution and their implementation timeframe is 3 years. In what
timeframe does the state of Delaware wish to implement this solution?
74.| 4.20 With respect to the training video in this section and 4.33.4, please define Either format VHS or DVD can be
whether the state requires VHS or DVD format. provided.
75.| 4.24.4 This section of the RFP states: “The Contractor must return to the State any This should be changed to ninety (90)

funds that could not be settled to the retailer within 30 [emphasis added]
calendar days of the initial ACH. If the responsibility for EBT-only acquiring
is subcontracted, the subcontractor must also return any rejected
settlement funds to the State within 30 [emphasis added] days.”

The currently proposed FNS regulations regarding Unsettled SNAP Funds
reads “If a State Agency’s EBT Contractor cannot settle a retailer’s SNAP
funds and all attempts to contact the retailer have failed, these funds must
be returned to the State agency within 90 calendar days of the initial
Automated Clearing House (ACH) transaction attempt.”
We request the state change the RFP requirement from 30 to 90 calendar days
to be in compliance with the FNS regulations.

days.
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76.

4.30

This RFP section states “During conversion...Please provide the process for
converting EBT cards from the current over-the-counter process to a centralized
mailing process.” If the incumbent vendor is awarded the new contract a
conversion will not be required. Therefore, please explain when the State
would want the mailed cards project implemented by the incumbent?

August 2011, when the new contract
will be in effect.

77.

6.1.2

Please clarify the conflicting instructions in Section 6 which states no hard
copies are required with those in this section which states: “The original of the
Transmittal Letter shall be submitted in a separate, sealed envelope inside the
package containing the Technical Proposals. All other copies of the Transmittal
Letter shall be bound into the copies of the Technical Proposal.”

Letter in hard copy. One (1) original
only.

78.

6.1.3

July 31, 2010 is a Saturday. Please clarify the date on which the state will mail
the notification of award.

See response 54.

79.

6.2.3

RFP Section 4.3 states: “Any other proposed exceptions to this RFP must be
addressed in the Executive Summary (Section C).” RFP Section 6.2.3 states that
the Executive Summary is limited to 10 pages. Please clarify if the exceptions
are excluded from the 10 page limit?

Exceptions submitted as part of 10
pages of Executive Summary.

80.

6.3.1

The RFP states that “The Total Cost shown in Schedule F1 must include all
costs (except out year costs) that the selected vendor will be paid by
DHSS.” However, Schedule F1 does not apply to the EBT pricing model
because it does not accommodate cost-per-case-month (CPCM). Also, the
total cost can only be estimated based on current case counts. Fluctuation
in case counts over the life of the contract affects the cost.

We request that the state clarify if this is a technology contract or an EBT
services contract. If the latter, please revise the section/forms to provide for
CPCM pricing.

See response 61.

81.

7.3

The RFP states: “The maximum term of the project is five (5) years from
contract signature. Bidder may propose a shorter term in their proposal.
The system implementation, including data migration and transition from
current EBT vendor must be completed by August 2011. The State shall
have the right to extend the contract period for 5 additional one-year
periods or portions thereof for a total contract term not to exceed 5

See response 57.
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years.”
Would the state please clarify the term of the initial contract, and the impact of
extensions, if any, on the overall contract term? The first sentence is very clear
that the contract is for 5 years. The last sentence then defines extensions to
the contract. Please clarify if extensions are permitted to the initial 5-year
contract, and if yes, do those extensions then add a possible 5 additional years
to the contract term, for a total of 10 years?

82.

General
Question
Regarding EBT
Cards

Section 4.30, EBT Transition Plan, and 4.31, Disaster Preparation, are the only
references in the RFP to Delaware’s EBT cards, your current over-the-
counter card issuance process, and your future requirement for mailed
cards. Typically EBT RFP’s include a Card and PIN issuance section that
defines requirements for type of issuance (OTC or mail), reissuance
process, vendor and state responsibilities, card design and specifications,
etc.

Without such requirements, the vendors may not include State-assumed

deliverables in the pricing which means the State is open to additional cost

after the contract is signed for items not identified in the RFP.
Clarify if the state will assume responsibility for mailing the cards from “a
central location” (as defined in Section 4.30), or if mailed cards are the
responsibility of the EBT vendor using their own card processing services. If the
vendor will be responsible, please provide all the card/PIN requirements in a
format similar to what was proposed for the current contract so that all vendors
know what to respond to and price. And, we recommend the state provide cost
schedules for both over-the-counter and for mailed cards since the cost
structure is different for each method, and clarify what costs must be included
in the CPCM.

Mailing Cards will be the responsibility of the
EBT Vendor. Please see PIN selections current
requirements:

The personal identification number (PIN) is a
series of four digits. Cardholders use a PIN to
access benefits to ensure that only the
intended cardholder can obtain the authorized
benefits. If a card is lost or stolen, the benefits
cannot be accessed without knowledge of the
PIN.

Based on State requirements, the cardholder
selects a PIN through the PIN Select Terminal
or SIVR. The EBT System allows for two
different methods of PIN selection:

¢ PIN Select POS terminal

* SIVR PIN Select (used for hardship cases only)

No PIN information is included on the card.
Because there is no way to look up a PIN, if a
cardholder forgets the PIN, the cardholder
must get a new one.
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83.| 4.16.1 This section instructs the vendor to “Refer to the section on Administrative The State data center sends updated benefit
Transactions”. We can find no such section, typically included in EBT agthorizations to EBT Vendor for the case an,d
. . client. A batch file, generated from the State’s
RFPs, in this RFP. host computer, is sent through an established
At the bidder’s conference the State indicated that this reference will be file transmission link. Online updates through
removed. It should be noted that if the State does not include Administrative the Administrative Terminal application may
Terminal requirements in the RFP, the vendors will not include this also be utilized. The Administrative Terminal
feature/functionality in pricing. The State may be charged change order fees :;:Eté?nssgfevr':Z‘;:apsaast:tahr:il:rg]m?;izzcsess to
later when administrative terminal functions are added. Will the State please screen functions. These screens show the user
define administrative terminal requirements that will at least support the all case, client, and card data as well as manage
functions you currently use? this information for transaction processing
purposes. This function also formats and
manages host requests and provides
communication with the host system.
84.| 4.24 This section indicates that AMA files unsuccessfully transmitted must be “our Daily Exception/Error Report” -
submitted to the state on “...our Daily Exception/Error Report”. Currently the Please Disregard.
state does not receive notice about AMA file rejects. If a transmission to the
Federal Reserve for AMA is unsuccessful, the vendor either re-transmits the
AMA file after determining the problem or submits a manual entry to AMA on
behalf of the state. We request that the state delete this reporting
requirement, or provide a sample of the required report.
85.| 4.31 With respect to EBT cards in a disaster, we have two categories of questions:

disaster card delivery specifications, and disaster card services pricing.

This section states: “In the event of a disaster in Delaware, the EBT Vendor
must support DHSS in implementing a Disaster Food Supplement Program,
in which EBT cards and benefits are delivered in an emergency.”

DELIVERY: Requirements specific to disaster card services are not defined
in the RFP. If the State does not define disaster card delivery requirements,
vendors will not be able to respond to or price the service, and you may be
charged change order fees later for disaster card services that you assume,
but were not defined in the RFP.

Since the State plans to convert to mail issuance, please define the

Delivery of Cards must be able to
occur during a Disaster, the same as
under normal conditions. Disaster
Cases would need to be added to EBT
system on a daily basis and cards
would be mailed with normal, daily
cards. Please provide Optional Pricing
for this.
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requirements for how the State envisions card/file handling in a disaster.
For example, the State could add disaster cases to EBT system on a daily
basis and cards would either be mailed with the normal, daily cards, or
could be drop shipped to a location in the state.
PRICING: At the bidder’s conference, the State indicated that the bidders can
use their own pricing schedule format for disaster card pricing. All the vendors
must use same pricing tables or the state will have no accurate way to
determine comparable cost. Will the State please provide a schedule for
“Optional Pricing” that includes disaster card services?

86.

6.1.5

We have concerns about the short timeframe between when the state will
issue responses to questions and the proposal due date. Since the state
indicated at the bidder’s conference that the proposal due date will be
extended, we request the state allow at least one month elapsed time from
when answers are made available to vendors and the proposal due date.
Bidding vendors need sufficient time to read and analyze the answers/RFP
requirement changes, write and price our response. Two weeks is not
sufficient time to complete these tasks and produce a quality response to
the state.

Based on the number and type of questions raised, the missing and ambiguous

requirements, we respectfully suggest that the state answer questions as

received. And, that the state allow a second period of questions after the first
questions have been answered. A second question period will allow the
vendors to truly understand the state’s requirements and provide accurate
pricing.

2" Question Period has been added.
Please see response 54.

87.

6.2.3

At the bidder’s conference, the State indicated the Executive Summary is
limited to 10 pages including a vendor’s exceptions to the Terms and
Conditions. Typically T&C exceptions are not included in the Executive
Summary page count. Since this RFP and its T&Cs and contract are meant for a
technology contract and not an EBT proprietary software contract, vendors
must protect our interests by listing all our exceptions. If the required
Executive Summary information and the vendor’s exceptions exceed 10 pages,
will the state exclude the T&C exceptions from the Executive Summary page
count, or explain how a vendor should provide the exceptions

No, 10 pages.
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88.

6.3.1

To reiterate our concern about pricing schedules as mentioned in FIS question
#30, All the vendors must use the same pricing schedules (tables) or the state
will have no way to accurately determine comparable cost. We request the
State please replace Schedule F with schedules comparable to those used in
the current contract and applicable to the EBT proprietary software services
requested in the RFP.

Please clarify whether the state will continue to pay for POS equipment. If yes,
please provide a pricing schedule so the vendor can price the cost of POS
equipment.

The RFP did not contain any requirement regarding client pay phone access. Is
the vendor to assume that they can block pay phone usage under the new
contract? If the State wishes to continue to offer client pay phone access,
please include a schedule so the vendor to price this service.

See response 59 and 61.

89.

Appendix A

This clause indicates that these General Terms are applicable to the RFP and
presumably to the contract. This section indicates, "If bidders are unwilling to
comply with certain RFP requirements, terms and conditions, objections must
clearly be stated in the proposal and will be subject to negotiation at the
discretion of the State." However, at page 75, number 18, the State indicates,
"Appendix C contains a copy of the standard Departmental contract, which will
be used for the agreement between the State and the winning bidder. The
State will not entertain any modifications to the language of this document. By
submitting a proposal to the RFP, the bidder agrees to be bound by the terms
and conditions in that contract document." Number 2 of page 72 and number
18 at page 75, seem to contradict because some of the general terms overlap.
In lieu of the fact that this RFP is so slanted towards technology services that
most EBT proprietary software vendors will take exception to, will the State
please clarify the bidder’s opportunity to take exception or will the State make
revisions to the Terms and Condition?.

Vendor should be prepared to accept
State Terms and conditions without
exceptions... However, major
objections should be made known in
Executive Summary.
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90.

Appendix C

Will the State please clarify if you will issue a Purchase Order for this bid or will
contract serve in lieu of a PO? If a PO is issued, does the approved Purchase
Order amount pertain to change requests?

PO will be issued.

91.

Appendix C

This clause refers to DHSS Policy Memorandum #46 and states: The policy and
procedures are included as Appendix to this Contract.” Policy
Memorandum #46 is not included in the RFP. If the vendor must agree to this
contract language at the time the bid is submitted, will the State please provide
the document?

Not Applicable.

92.

Appendix C

This clause refers to DHSS Policy Memorandum #40 and states: The policy and
procedures are included as Appendix to this Contract.” Policy
Memorandum #40 is not included in the RFP. If the vendor must agree to this
contract language at the time the bid is submitted, will the State please provide
the document?

Not Applicable.

93.

General

If the state makes major revisions to the RFP requirements in response to
vendor questions, such as adding/deleting/renumbering sections, we
respectfully request that the State provide an updated RFP in Word format with
tracking so the changes will be immediately evident to vendors.

Will respond to Questions Only in
Word format. Will not re-release RFP.

94.

4.31

This RFP section, under Contractor Systems, states: “When using an EBT
Administrative Terminal to issue Disaster Food Benefits, the Eligibility System
must be checked for duplicate participation at the time of issuance.” An EBT
vendor proposing a proprietary software solution does not issue any benefits
nor does the vendor have access to the DHSS Eligibility System. Will the State
please clarify or remove this requirement?

Please Disregard.
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